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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
         
SUMMARY OF CHANGES   
 
 
SECTION  SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
 
 
 
The following have been added by full text:  
        AMENDMENT 0001 
Amendment 0001 is hereby incorporated to include: 

1. Provide Pre-Proposal Inquiry (PPI) Responses 1-53 
2. All other Items 

____________________________________________________________________________  
 
I. PRE-PROPOSAL INQUIRY RESPONSES  

 
Q1. PWS, Page 7: 3.2 - "Contractors will reside on Isa AB in existing Contractor provided housing." This implies 
that Offerors need to supply housing. Please clarify. 
 
R1.  Contractors must reside on base and provide all living/sleeping spaces for their employees.  
 
Q2. How many ambulances need staffing for what time period? (IE: one ambulance 24/7/365) 
 
R2. One ambulance 24/7 
 
Q3. Where will the ambulances be while not on a call? 
 
R3.  The contractor can place the ambulance where it's most convenient for response coverage.  
 
Q4.  Are there any ancillary duties that need to be performed by the on-duty crew? (IE: fire station duties, clinic 
duties, emergency room duties) 
 
R4. No. This requirement is for Emergency Medical Response only.  
 
Q5. Please clarify who provides lodging and meals. 
 
R5.  The contractor is responsible for providing meals and lodging. 
 
Q6. Please confirm the responses are due by 11 a.m. local time, Wednesday, Sept. 21. 
 
R6.  The proposal due date has been extend to 11:00am CEST, Friday 23 September 2016.  Please see 
Amendment 0001. 
 
Q7. Please clarify proposal submission details: electronic or hard copy submission? Price Volume? Technical 
Volume? 
 
R7.  Proposal submission shall be submitted electronically.  See section L, Instructions to Offerors. 
 
Q8.  Need to understand if this solicitation for EMS is limited to providing Ambulance service with two personnel 
only?  If so does the ambulance needs to be provided on site at isa airbase or will it be on call.  We went through the 
entire solicitation, but we were unclear on the exact scope of work. 
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R8. The requirement is to staff one ambulance, 24/7, with two NREMT-B personnel (one to drive/one to 
attend patient).  The ambulance will be located on site at Isa Airbase. 
 
Q9. Attachment J.D 0402000- Emergency Medical Services 2.2.2: Manpower required as per the contract is two 
EMT – Basic covering 24/7, does this mean that contractor will provide paramedics only with drivers not being part 
of the scope? 
 
R9.  The requirement is to staff one ambulance, 24/7, with two NREMT-B personnel (one to drive/one to 
attend patient).  Driver's will require DOT or Navy Emergency Vehicle Operator Course (EVOC) 
certification; Navy EVOC instruction provided by the Government. 
Q10. Attachment J.D 0402000- Emergency Medical Services 2.2.1, 3.2: As per Bahrain MOH regulations, trained 
nurses with BLS/ACLS certifications are eligible to receive paramedic license and manage ambulances. Will it 
suffice the requirements of this contract? 
 
R10.  No. The Contract requires National Registry Emergency Medical Technician - Basic certification. 
 
Q11. What is the contractor’s liability in case the ambulance has left the premises on transfer duty? Is there an 
expectation or requirement to provide back-up ambulance in such cases? 
 
R11.  GFE Ambulance will not leave Isa AB. Transport will be to either the US clinic or front gate to transfer 
patient for the Royal Bahrain AF clinic. Ambulance will not go off base. 
 
Q12. Attachment J.D 0402000- Emergency Medical Services 3.2: Will local nationals be able to fulfill contractor 
positions? 
 
R12. No. The Contract requires vetted U.S. Citizens. 
 
Q13. The main hospital facility (Royal Bahrain Hospital) is located around 50kms from the Base (travel time 30-
40min); nearest government facility is around 20kms (15-20min.). In this case the contractor might not be able to 
fulfill the requirement of 10minutes as mentioned in clause 3.2.3 of 0402000 (Fire and Emergency Services) or is 
the expectation for the contractor EMT to be onsite 24/7? Can this be modified? 
 
R13.  The contract requires the staffed ambulance to operate on Isa AB. 
 
Q14. Attachment J.D 0402000- Emergency Medical Services 2.3.2: Can specifications of ambulance and equipment 
fitted in it, be shared? Are the consumables and attachments latex free and provided by the government? 
 
R14.  Generically, the ambulance to be provided is a U.S. specification ambulance (typically Ford F-450 
based) leased through the GSA by CNIC. Consumables are normally provided GFE. 
 
Q15. As the ambulance is provided by the Government, would the contractor still be required to procure 
Comprehensive General Liability & Automobile Liability as per clause 2.3.5.2 of 0200000 Management and 
Administration? 
 
R15. Yes, per 2.3.5.2 of 0200000 Management and Administration. 
 
Q16. Will the contractor be held liable for any damages to the ambulance during transfer, assuming that the 
ambulance would be covered under accident insurance? 
 
R16. The ambulance will only operate on base. 
 
Q17. As mentioned in clause 2.7.1 of 0402000 (Fire and Emergency Services), key personnel to be deployed are 
PM, Quality Manager, SSHO and on-site supervisor. However the contract also says that contractor is required to 
provide only 2 EMT – Basics. Can this be clarified if this additional manpower is required? 
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R17.  The minimum on-duty staffing requirement is for two NREMT-B personnel, 24/7.  Contractor can 
determine additional/total staffing requirements needed to meet the on-duty requirement as they deem 
appropriate to maintain staffing while providing off-duty time, leave, vacation, etc., as needed. 
 
Q18. As per clause 3.2 of 0402000 (Fire and Emergency Services) contractor has to use only vetted US citizens. Is 
this a mandatory requirement? 
 
R18. Yes. 
 
Q19. The OPNAVINST training program as mentioned in clause 3.2 of 0402000 (Fire and Emergency Services) 
will be provided in-house at the Base or has to be separately arranged by the contractor. Does it require external 
certification? Can we be provided with detailed documents related to this? 
 
R19. This is a continuing education program for National Registry EMTs. All info is available on line.  See 
https://www.nremt.org/ 
 
Q20. Can we be provided with detailed investigations covered under the pre-employment check-up as specified in 
clause 2.2.4 of 0402000 (Fire and Emergency Services). 
 
R20.  Full requirements are listed NFPA 1500 and NFPA 1582. See http://www.nfpa.org/codes-and-standards 
 
Q21. As per clause 2.2.8 of 0402000 (Fire and Emergency Services) Contractor shall establish a Random Drug 
Screening Program. Can further details of this be shared? 
 
R21.  Contractor must have a means to conduct drug testing for employees. 
 
Q22.  The 10% performance guarantee mentioned in the document is applicable for this contract? 
 
R22.  The performance guarantee has been removed.  See Amendment 0001. 
 
Q23. Attachment J.D 0402000- Emergency Medical Services 2.2.9: If non U.S. personnel are utilized for all 
positions is this still a requirement 
 
R23.  Not applicable.  U.S. personnel required. 
 
Q24. Attachment J.D 0402000- Emergency Medical Services 2.2.4: Can this be conducted by local physicians? 
 
R24.  Yes, following listed NFPA code requirements. 
 
Q25.  Attachment J.D 0402000- Emergency Medical Services 2.2.1: How will this be conducted and by who? 
 
R25.  As developed by and conducted by the contractor IAW listed instructions. 
 
Q26.  Attachment J.D 0402000- Emergency Medical Services 3: Where can the SOP be accessed or who will 
provide them and when? 
 
R26.  SOP’s are internal documents to be developed by the Contractor to standardize delivery of services and 
guide daily work processes. 
 
Q27.  Attachment J.B 0200000- Management and Administration 2.6.1, 2.7.1.1, 2.7.1.2 and 2.7.1.3: Is the 
expectation that there is a person (different from EMT) onsite 24/7 in a government provided space? 
 
R27. The contractor must determine the best means to ensure the requirement is met.  The Contractor must 
use their own space to operate EMT services. 
 

https://www.nremt.org/
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Q28. Attachment J.B 0200000- Management and Administration 2.6.2.6: Is this required if non U.S. persons are 
contractors? 
 
R28.  All contractors must be US citizens. 
 
Q29. Attachment J.B 0200000- Management and Administration 2.8.3: Will a CAC be required for performance of 
duties, If so, who will be the sponsor for account access and CAC authorization? 
 
R29.  Yes. The contractor must determine the best means to ensure the requirement is met. 
 
Q30. Attachment J.B 0200000- Management and Administration 2.8.7: What level of clearance is required if non 
U.S. personnel are authorized? 
 
R30.  Not applicable.  U.S. personnel required. 
 
Q31. Attachment J.B 0200000- Management and Administration 2.15.1.2: Can you provide a sample of what items 
will be required to be purchased through emall? Who will authorize access to this site? 
 
R31.  Not applicable. DoD EMALL is the electronic medium for authorized Government personnel to place 
orders for service to the Contractor. 
 
Q32. Attachment J.A 0100000- General Information 1.2: What are the outlying support areas? Will this require 
separate personnel to be located 24/7? 
 
R32.  No outlying support areas. Isa AB only. 
 
Q33. When can a site visit be arranged and who is the POC for this? 
 
R33.  Due to time constraints, a site visit will not be authorized. 
 
Q34. RFP Section G: What are landfill tickets? When and is this relevant for pre-construction meeting? 
 
R34.  See revised Section G, Amendment 0001. 
 
Q35.  RFP Section L #9: Where are the design drawings and is this relevant? 
 
R35. See revised Section L, Amendment 0001. 
 
Q36.  RFP Section M: Is this an error or is there construction required? 
 
R36. Section M Evaluation Factors for Award has been revised.  See Amendment 0001. 
 
Q37.  Will our staff have access to PX, internet in rooms, laundry, and DFAC? 
 
R37.  The existing base support contractor provides support for these types of services.  The Contractor will 
have to coordinate with the existing contractor to obtain these services. 
 
Q38.  Attachment J.B-0200000 - Page 6, Paragraph 2.4 - Government-Furnished Facilities is blank. Please provide 
clarification regarding the following. 
 

1. The work site for EMT-B personnel; e.g., Naval Health Clinic, Fire Station, or other facility 
The contractor will provide their own area/office to work.  The Government will not provide 
Government Furnished Facilities. 
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2. The work site for personnel required to be "on-site" per the proposal (project manager and quality 
manager).  Is this site the same as the work site for EMT-B personnel?   
Yes 
 

3. Is the contractor required to reimburse the Government for any Government-Furnished Facilities?   
No. The Government will not provide Government Furnished Facilities. 

 
Q39. Attachment J.D-0402000 - Page 7, Paragraph 3.2 - "Contractors will reside on Isa AB in existing contractor 
provided housing. No expansion of housing units will be authorized." 
Please provide clarification regarding the following: 
 

1. How many units are available in the “existing contractor provided housing?" 
The Contractor will have to coordinate with the either of the two existing contractor to secure 
housing. 

2. Are all housing units or rooms single occupancy? 
The Contractor will have to coordinate with the either of the two existing contractor to secure 
housing. 

3. Does contractor-provided housing refer to housing provided by a separate contractor responsible for 
housing, or the incumbent contractor providing medical services? 
The Contractor will have to coordinate with the either of the two existing contractor to secure 
housing. 

4. Is the contractor bidding on EMS services required to reimburse the government or separate contractor for 
housing? 
The Contractor will have to coordinate with the either of the two existing contractor to secure 
housing. 

 
Q40.  Is the governments intent to require only past experience and past performance information, or does he 
government require a technical proposal submission, if so what is the page limitation? 
 
R40. Please see section L and section M for proposal submission requirements. 
 
Q41. Will the Government provide a listing of Government Furnished Material and Equipment that will be provided 
to the contractor for use in performance of this effort? 
 
R41. Yes 
 
Q42. From RFP pg 27 of 35 ; Section "Ten-Percent (10%) Performance Guarantee" - The RFP cites provision of 
performance bond pursuant to FAR Clause 52.228-15. Far Clause 52.228-15 is guidance for Performance and 
Payment Bonds related to Construction. There are no construction requirements identified in the RFP. Additionally, 
FAR 28.103-1(a) which states “Generally, agencies shall not require performance and payment bonds for other than 
construction contracts.” Based on the criteria outlined in FAR 28.103-2, paragraphs (2) through (4) are not 
applicable to this contract. Request removal of Section "Ten-Percent (10%) Performance Guarantee" on pg 27 of 35 
and and FAR 52.228-15 as this acquisition does not meet the requirements of system. Inclusion of this requirement 
in the solicitation will only serve to increase the price from any responsible offeror. 
 
R42.  The performance guarantee has been removed.  See Amendment 0001. 
 
Q43. Attachment N33191-16-R-1047 - Page 10, Section H - Special Contract Requirements 
Please provide clarification regarding the following: 
 

1. Are employees covered in this solicitation considered U.S. Government contractors? 
Yes 

2. Are employees eligible for current and anticipated hardship pays associated with assignment to Bahrain; 
e.g., Imminent Danger Pay, Combat Pay, or other specialty pays? 
The contractor must determine the best means to ensure the requirement is met. 
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3. From which organization or command does the contractor obtain country clearances? 
The contractor must determine the best means to ensure the requirement is met. 

 
Q44. Instructions to Offerors: Please clarify submission requirements. Is a Technical Volume response required? Or 
will evaluations be done soley on experience, past performance and price as noted in Section M? 
 
R44.  Please see section L and section M for proposal submission requirements. 
 
Q45. 2.7.13 - Site Safety Health Officer (SSHO): Is this part applicable to the contract? 
 
R45. Yes. 
 
Q46. Are their any tender response templates which you would like us to use in responding to this Solicitation? 
 
R46.  Please see section L and section M for proposal submission requirements. 
 
Q47.  Am I correct in saying that the NAVFAC/USACE Past Performance Questionnaire is only to be used when 
seeking a reference from a NAVFAC/USACE contact?  Otherwise, we should use the Experience Questionnaire? 
 
R47.  Please see section L and section M for proposal submission requirements. 
 
Q48.  Does the Government seek to have the Contracting Officers Representative based at Isa AB?  If not, will they 
need a security clearance / base pass for conducting site visits as necessary, and will the Government offer support 
in obtaining security clearances/base passes for this purpose? 
 
R48.  The COR will be based at NSA Bahrain and will coordinate base access with the RBAF. 
 
Q49.  What are the Visa & Licensing Requirements for the EMT-Bs working at ISA Air Base?  Is there any 
available support from the Government? 
 
R49. Visa requirements are not within our purview.   There are no unique licensing requirements as the 
EMT’s are under contract to the US government.  The government will supply medical direction & oversight 
as outline in the PWS. 
 
Q50.  Will there be any assistance from the Government for the provision of necessary security clearances for our 
staff? 
 
R50.  No. The contractor must determine the best means to ensure the requirement is met.   
 
Q51.  What are the proposed timelines for this project? (eg: contract award date, contract start date, etc) 
 
R51.  The anticipated award date for the project is 30 September 2016, subject to the availability of funds. 
 
Q52.Section 3.2.3 Transportation Services: How many ambulances are provided and need to be operational for the 
duration of the Contract 
 
R52.  Two ambulances are provided.  One must be staffed daily (24/7) 
 
Q53. Section 3.2 EMS Service: 2 EMT-B personnel per vehicle are required, how many prersonnel total are for 
operational effectiveness - Are Dispatching and Operations Director roles filled by the Government 
 
R53.  The contractor must determine the best means to ensure the requirement is met.  Dispatching is 
provided by a contract entity.   

 
****ALL PPIs HAVE BEEN ANSWERED, NO ADDITIONAL PPIs WILL BE ACCEPTED**** 
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II. All other Items 

 
Page 8 of 35, Section G Contract Administration Data is hereby removed and replaced with: 
 
This solicitation will result in the award of one (1) contract.  Upon award of this contract, Contract Administration 
shall be assigned to NAVFAC PWD Bahrain. 
 
A. The Contractor shall submit invoices monthly to the Contracting Officer in original and one (1) copy for services 
provided.  Payment will be based on invoices submitted by the Contractor for satisfactorily completed work.  
Invoices will be processed for payment upon verification of work actually performed and receipt of required 
Contractor submittals.   
B. An invoice is a written request for payment under the contract, for supplies delivered or for services rendered.  In 
order to be proper, an invoice must include as applicable the following: 
   
(1)  Invoice date; 
(2)  Name of Contractor; 
(3)  Contract number (including order number if any), contract line item number, contract 
 description of supplies or services, quantity, contract unit of measure and unit price, and extended total; 
(4)  Shipment number and date of shipment (bill of lading number and weight of shipment will be shown for 
shipments on Government bills of lading); 
(5)  Name and address to which payment is to be sent (which must be the same as that in the contract or on a proper 
notice of assignment); 
(6)  Name (where practicable), title, phone number and mailing address of person to be notified in event of an 
improper invoice; 
(7)  Any other information or documentation required by other provisions of the contract (such as evidence of 
subcontractor’s invoice report); 
 
Invoice shall be prepared and submitted in original and 1 copy (one copy shall be marked “original”) unless 
otherwise specified.   
 
CONTRACTOR'S FINAL RELEASE 
Before the final payment under this contract is made, the Contractor shall complete and submit, to the Contracting 
Officer, a correct "Contractor's release." 
 
“For Accounting purposes and the administrative convenience of the Government, the accounting and 
appropriations date shall be expressed in Dollars.” 
 

 
 
Page 26 of 35, Section L- Instructions to Offerors is hereby removed and replaced with: 
 
INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS 

A. General Information 
1. This acquisition will result in the award of a Firm Fixed Price (FFP) Emergency Medical Services 

contract. The contract will be procured using the negotiated procedures, as it has been determined in 
accordance with FAR 6.401 to be the most appropriate method of contracting the subject requirement. 
The lowest price technically acceptable source selection process, as described in FAR 15.101, will be 
used for this procurement. 
 

2. The outcomes to be achieved are Emergency Medical Services. Isa Air Base, Bahrain requires 
continuous Emergency Medical Services (24/7) to ensure the protection of life, property and 
environment as a result of an accident, manmade or natural disaster, for Logistic Support Area, U.S. 
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assets in Bahraini Military Airfield, and outlying support areas.  The Contractor shall provide all labor, 
management, supervision, and personal protective equipment required to perform Emergency Medical 
Services while utilizing a government furnished ambulance.  The Contractor shall respond to all EMS 
calls with qualified personnel to ensure initial responder medical care is rendered.  Members providing 
this service will be Nationally Registered Emergency Medical Technicians – Basic certified (EMT-
B’s) 

3. The basic contract award CLIN 0001 will consist of all work stated in item #2 above.  
 

4. The contract completion date is 365 calendar days from contract award.   
 

5. The Government intends to award a contract resulting from this solicitation to the responsible offeror 
that represents the best value to the Government, price and non-price factors combined, as outlined in 
Section M of this solicitation. 

 
6. This acquisition is being solicited on an unrestricted basis with full and open competition. 

 
7. The contract will be awarded in US Currency ($) and all offers must be submitted in US Currency 

($).  Failure to submit a price proposal in US Currency ($) will result in exclusion from further 
competition. 

 
8. Offers must be submitted in English, to include any and all supporting documentation (certificates, 

licenses, award documents, etc.).  If supporting documentation cannot be recreated in English, than at a 
minimum an English translation for any supporting documentation written in a language other than 
English must be provided. 
 
Each offeror must electronically submit a price proposal and a technical proposal to the Contract 
Specialist Stephen Astwood at the following email address: stephen.astwood@eu.navy.mil .   All 
proposals must be received by the time and date stated in the solicitation.  The time for receipt of 
proposals shall be based on the time on the receiving Contract Specialist’s computer.   Timeliness of 
proposals will be in strict accordance with FAR 52.215-1.  Only those proposal received by the 
specified time and date will be considered and reviewed.  Incomplete proposals may result in the 
rejection of the proposal. 
 

9. Pre-Proposal Inquiries (PPI):  Offerors who determine that the technical and or contractual 
requirements of this RFP require clarification(s) in order to permit submittal of a responsive proposal 
shall submit all questions in writing, in the English Language.  Additionally, all inquiries shall be 
submitted using the Pre-Proposal Inquiry (PPI) form attached to this solicitation as Attachment C.  All 
Inquiries shall be submitted via e-mail to stephen.astwood@eu.navy.mil.  Pre-proposal inquiries will 
be accepted up to 06 September 2016.  A response will be published as an amendment to the 
solicitation.  
 

10. System for Award Management (SAM) registration is required for all offerors, including Joint 
Venture (JV) offerors (registration must state the NAME of the JV). SAM registration can be 
accomplished at https://www.sam.gov. Offerors not registered in SAM shall obtain a DUN & 
Bradstreet (DUNS) number and a CAGE or NCAGE prior to registering in SAM. 

 
A DUNS number is required for all offerors, including JV offerors. In addition to the DUNS number 
required for JV offerors, JV offerors must provide a DUNS number for each member compromising 
the JV. DUNS numbers can be obtained at http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform. The DUNS number is 
required in order to register for SAM. 

 
Offerors must be registered in SAM prior to the submission of proposals. 
 
An active SAM status is required prior to award. 

mailto:stephen.astwood@eu.navy.mil
mailto:stephen.astwood@eu.navy.mil
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
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Page 27 of 35, Ten-Percent (10%) Performance Guarantee is hereby removed. 
 

 
 
Page 33 of 35, Evaluation Factors for Award is hereby removed and replaced with: 
 
EVALUATION FACTORS FOR AWARD 
This procurement will result in the award of a Firm Fixed Price contract. In making the best value award decision, 
the government will award the contract to the offeror submitting the lowest priced, technically acceptable offer.  An 
overall non‐price factors rating must be at least “ACCEPTABLE” in order to be eligible for award. An 
“UNACCEPTABLE” rating in any factor results in the overall non‐price factors proposal being rated 
“UNACCEPTABLE” unless corrected through discussions. An overall non‐price factors rating of 
“UNACCEPTABLE” makes a proposal ineligible for award. 
 
1. The solicitation requires the evaluation of price and the following non-price factors: 
 
  Factor 1 – Experience  
  Factor 2 – Past Performance 
 
 The distinction between corporate experience and past performance is corporate experience pertains to the 
types of work and volume of work completed by a contractor that are comparable to the types of work covered by 
this requirement, in terms of size, scope, and complexity.  Past performance pertains to both the relevance of recent 
efforts and how well a contractor has performed on the contracts.  
   
 2.  Basis of Evaluation and Submittal Requirements for Each Factor.   
 

(a)   Price: 
 

(1) Solicitation Submittal Requirements:   
 

The price proposal shall be separate from the technical proposal.  Complete and submit the following: 
• Provide Cover letter 
• Complete Standard Form 33 and acknowledgement of all solicitation amendments. 
• Provide a total price for CLIN 0001- all labor, management, supervision, and personal protective 

equipment required to perform Emergency Medical Services at ISA Air Base, Bahrain.   
• Price proposals shall be submitted in US Currency (USD). Failure to submit price proposals in US 

Currency (USD) will result in the offer to be ineligible for award.  All proposals must be submitted no later 
than the time and dated specified in Section L. 

 
(2) Basis of Evaluation:   

The Government will evaluate price based on the total price for CLIN 0001.  The Government will evaluate the 
proposed prices to determine whether the proposed prices are fair and reasonable.  Any proposed price determined 
to be unreasonably high or unbalanced may result in Offeror(s) being ineligible for award.  To determine fair and 
reasonableness of proposed prices, the Government will consider one (1) or more of the following: 
 
                  (i)  Comparison of proposed prices received in response to the RFP. 
                  (ii)  Comparison of proposed prices with the IGCE. 
                  (iii)  Comparison of proposed prices with available historical information. 
                  (iv)  Comparison of market survey results. 
 

a) Ensure the offeror’s Representations and Certifications, including the supplemental certifications in Section 
K, are current and posted in the System for Award Management (SAM) database.   
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b)  
c) Each offeror shall furnish the information required by the PWS. The offeror shall sign the offer and print or 

type its name on the Schedule and each continuation sheet on which it makes an entry.  Erasures or other 
changes must be initialed by the person signing the offer. Offers signed by an agent shall be accompanied 
by evidence of that agent's authority, unless that evidence has been previously furnished to the issuing 
office. 

 
d) Offers for supplies or services other than those specified will not be considered unless authorized by the 

solicitation. 
 

e) Offerors must state a definite time for delivery of supplies or for performance of services, unless otherwise 
specified in the solicitation. 

 
f) Time, if stated as a number of days, will include Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays. 

 
g) The Government reserves the right to conduct a price realism analysis of proposed prices it considers to be 

unrealistically low.  The Government may consider offeror(s) understanding of the work or ability to 
perform the work in this analysis and risk assessment.  An unrealistically low price may result in the 
offeror(s) proposed price being rejected the offeror(s) proposal being ineligible for award. 

 
 (b)  Technical Factors: 
 
Factor 1 – Experience 
 

1. Solicitation Submittal Requirements 
The Offeror shall submit the following information: 
 
Submit a minimum of two (2) and maximum five (5) relevant Emergency Management Service (EMS) projects 
for the Offeror that best demonstrates your experience on relevant projects that are similar in size, scope and 
complexity to the PWS.  Project cost shall be a minimum of $300,000.00.  Project(s) submitted shall be 
performed in the last eight (8) years.  A project is defined as an EMS project performed under a single task 
order or contract.   
 
For all submitted projects, the description of the project shall clearly describe the scope of work performed and 
the relevancy to the project requirements of the PWS. 
 

2. Basis of Evaluation 
The basis of evaluation will include the Offeror’s demonstrated experience and depth of experience in 
performing relevant Emergency Service Management projects as defined in the solicitation submittal 
requirements.  The assessment of the Offeror’s relevant experience will be used as a means of evaluating the 
capability of the Offeror to successfully meet the requirements of the PWS.  The Government will only review a 
maximum five (5) projects. Any projects submitted in excess of the five (5) will not be considered. 

 
Factor 2 – Past Performance 
 

1. Solicitation Submittal Requirements: 
Submit a Past Performance Questionnaire (PPQ) for each project included in Factor 1.  The Offeror should 
provide completed Past Performance Questionnaires (PPQ) in the proposal.  Offerors shall not incorporate by 
reference into their proposal PPQs previously submitted for other RFPs.  However, this does not preclude the 
Government from utilizing previously submitted PPQ information in the past performance evaluation. 
 
Offerors may provide any information on problems encountered and the corrective actions taken on projects 
submitted under Factor 1 – Experience.  Offerors may also address any adverse past performance issues.  
Explanations shall not exceed one (1) double-sided page (or two (2) single-sided pages) in total. 
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2. Basis of Evaluation:  
This evaluation focuses on how well the Offeror performed on the relevant projects submitted under Factor 1 – 
Experience and past performance on other projects currently documented in known sources.  More emphasis 
will be placed on more relevant projects.  In addition to the above, the Government reserves the right to obtain 
information for use in the evaluation of past performance from any and all sources including sources outside of 
the Government.  Other sources may include, but are not limited to, past performance information retrieved 
through the Past Performance Information Retrieval System (PPIRS) using all CAGE/DUNS numbers of 
Contractors who are part of a partnership or joint venture identified in the Offeror’s proposal, inquiries of owner 
representative(s), Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS), Electronic 
Subcontract Reporting System (eSRS), and any other known sources not provided by the Offeror.   
 
The Government will consider the currency and relevance of the information, the source of the information, 
context of the data, and general trends in the Contractor’s performance.  This evaluation is separate and distinct 
from the Contracting Officer’s responsibility determination.  The assessment of the Offeror’s past performance 
will be used as a means of evaluating the Offeror’s probability to successfully meet the requirements of the 
PWS.   
 
Offerors lacking relevant past performance history will not be evaluated favorably or unfavorably in past 
performance and will receive an Unknown Confidence rating. 

 
 

 
The proposal due date has been extended to Friday, 23 September 2016 at 11:00am CEST.   
 
Each offeror must electronically submit a price proposal and a technical proposal to the Contract Specialist Stephen 
Astwood at the following email address: stephen.astwood@eu.navy.mil .   All proposals must be received by the 
time and date listed above.  The time for receipt of proposals shall be based on the time on the receiving Contract 
Specialist’s computer.   Timeliness of proposals will be in strict accordance with FAR 52.215-1.  Only those 
proposal received by the specified time and date will be considered and reviewed.  Incomplete proposals may result 
in the rejection of the proposal. 
 

 
 
All other terms and conditions remain unchanged 
 
  
 
(End of Summary of Changes)  
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